
 

 11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 

 

13 May 2015 

Mr John Dixon 
Branch Secretary  
Australian Education Union, New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch  
22-23 Mary Street 
SURRY HILLS NSW 2010 
 
via email: dixon@nswtf.org.au 

Dear Mr Dixon 

Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch Financial 
Report for the year ended 31 December 2014 - [FR2014/437] 
I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Australian Education Union New South Wales 
Teachers Union (the reporting unit).  The documents were lodged with the Fair Work 
Commission (FWC) on 6 May 2015 and an amended financial report was lodged on 7 May 2015.    

The financial report has now been filed.  

The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 
financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 

(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under 
s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 
Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  A primary 
review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 

Please note that the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2015 may be subject to an 
advanced compliance review. 

I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report.  You are 
not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  The FWC will confirm 
these concerns have been addressed prior to filing next year’s report. 

Designed Officer’s Certificate 
As discussed, the Designated Officer’s Certificate provided with the amended financial report 
stated that the Committee of Management meetings of the reporting unit to first pass the 
resolution in relation to the financial report and then secondly to accept the full financial report 
both occurred on the 28 April 2015.  During our conversation on the 8 May 2015 you indicated 
that the meeting to pass the resolution occurred on the 31 March 2015 as per the Designated 
Officer’s Certificate provided on the 6 May 2015. 

Please ensure that in future years that the correct dates are provided in the signed Designated 
Officer’s Certificate that is lodged with the FWC. 

Committee of Management Statement 
Presentation of Committee of Management Statement 

Item 34 of the reporting guidelines requires the reporting unit to prepare a Committee of 
Management Statement containing declarations by the Committee of Management in relation to 
its General Purpose Financial Report.  The Committee of Management Statement forms part of 
the scope of the Auditor’s Statement. 

mailto:dixon@nswtf.org.au


Section 254 of the RO Act requires the reporting unit to prepare an Operating Report in relation 
to the financial year.  The Operating Report does not form part of the scope of the Auditor’s 
Statement. 

The Committee of Management Statement and the Operating Report are separate reports.  I 
note that the Committee of Management Statement is included in the Operating Report of the 
reporting unit.  Please ensure that in future years that these reports are presented, signed and 
dated separately. 

Wages recovery statement 

Item (f) and (g) of the Committee of Management Statement have included the wording from the 
FWC ‘Model Financial Statements’.  Item (f) states that the reporting unit did not derive revenue 
from recovery of wages activity during the reporting period but then item (g) states that the 
reporting unit did in fact derive revenue from recovery of wages activities.  Only one of these 
events could have occurred during the reporting period. 

Please ensure that in future years that only one statement in relation to either deriving or not 
deriving revenue from recovery of wages activities is included in the Committee of Management 
Statement. 

Committee of Management resolution to provide a concise report 
Section 265(2) of the RO Act states that ‘a concise report may only be provided if, under the 

rules of the reporting unit, the committee of management of the reporting unit resolves that a 

concise report is to be provided’.  Although a statement is included in the Designated Officer’s 
Certificate that indicates a resolution to this effect has been passed by the Committee of 
Management, the Committee of Management Statement does not include this statement.   

Please ensure in future years that this resolution is provide in the Committee of Management 
Statement. 

Concise report and the reporting guidelines 
Item 2 of the reporting guidelines state that ‘these reporting guidelines apply to all general 

purpose financial reports (GPFR), including a concise financial report....’.  In future years, if the 
Committee of Management resolves to provide members with a concise report, please ensure 
that all requirements within the reporting guidelines are appropriately disclosed.  

Reporting Requirements 
On the FWC website a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 
associated timelines are available.  The most recent copy of the Reporting Guidelines and a 
model set of financial statements can also be found.  The FWC recommends reporting units use 
this model as it will assist in ensuring compliance with the RO Act, the s.253 reporting guidelines 
and the Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to this information may be obtained via this 
link. 

Should you wish to discuss the matters raised in this letter, or if you require further information on 
the financial reporting requirements of the Act, I may be contacted on (03) 8661 7886 or via email 
at joanne.fenwick@fwc.gov.au. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 
Joanne Fenwick 
Financial Reporting Specialist 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/compliance-governance/financial-reporting
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/compliance-governance/financial-reporting
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AMENDED 

Ms Bernadette O'Neill 
General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne Vic. 3001 

Dear Ms O'Neill 

Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
23·33 Mary Street, Surry Hills NSW 201 0 
NSW Branch President: Maurie Mulheron 
NSW Branch Secretary: John Dixon 

Telephone: (02) 9217 2100 
Facsimile: (02) 9217 24 70 

7/05/2015 

REF:360/2015/JD/EF 

Re: Financial Documents for the Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) 
For financial period ended 31 December 2014 

In accordance with s268 ofthe Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, I hereby lodge: 

(a) A copy of the AEU (NSWTF Branch) Financial Report for the financial period 31 
December 2014 (Attachment A:) ; 

(b) A copy of the concise report provided to members (Attachment B); and 

(c) Secretary's Certificate that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided 
to members and presented to the meeting of the NSWTF Branch Executive of the 
Australian Education Union on 28 April 2015 (Attachment C). 

Yours sincerely 

/~ 
John Dixon 
NSWTF Branch Secretary 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

The committee presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 
2014. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of managc:ment in office at any time during the financial 
year was: 

Maurie Mulheron 
Gary Zadkovich 
Joan Lemaire 
Jenny Diamond 
John Dixon 
Wendy Currie 
John Dixon 
Maxine Sharkey 
Rod Brown 
Wayne Webber 
Gemma Ackroyd 
Kathryn Bellach 
Dianne Byers 
Philip Cooke 
Kylie Dawson 
Kathy Deacon 
Sally Edsall 
Denis Fitzgerald 
John Gauci 
Jennifer Mace 
Tim Mulroy 
Kathy Nicholson 
Lindy Nolan 
"Michael Sciffer 
Sue Simpson 
Geoff Turnbull 
Phil von Schoenberg 
Margaret Vos 
Natasha Watt 
David Wynne 

President 
Deputy President 
Senior Vice-President 
Branch Secretary 
Branch Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Mc:mber 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Execu rive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member. 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 
Elected 12 September 2014 
Resigned position 3 August 2014 
Resigned position 12 September 2014 

Elected 6 May 2014 
Resigned position 15 Septc:mber 2014 

Elected 12 Septembc.r 2014 

ElecteJ 12 September 2014 

Resigned posicion 31 March 2014 

Resigned posicion 16 March 2014 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Elected on 6 May 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Review of Principal Activities and Results of Opetations 

The AEU (NSW Branch) Execurive set the following strategic objeccives for rhe year 2013-14: 
• Increase Government funding to public schools and TAF£ institutes . 
• Enhance and support the professional status of AEU (NSW Branch) members in public 

education. 

• 

P rotect and promote quality teaching and leaming. 
Protect and enhance the industrial rights of AEU (NSW Branch) members. 
Promote human rights and social justice . 

The principal activities of the AEG (NSW Branch) dunng the financial year have focussed on the 
achievement of these straregic objectives. 

In relation to the first objective, the AEU (NSW Branch) " f give a Gonski" campaign at the 
national, state and school community level focussed on getting community and government support 
for the replacement of the existing incqwtable federal schools funding model by a new funding 
modd based on the findings of the Gonski Schools Funiling review Pand, i.e. funding all schools to 
the resource standard necessary for every student to be given the oppotrunity to succeed regardless 
of their family background or ci.rcumstances. The AEC continues to campaign for the re-election of 
a federal government which would commir ro and honour a better education for all Australian 
children. 

In the face of the increasing privacisarion ofTAFE, the Stop TAFE Cuts campaign was prosecuted 
by the 1\.E\.J (NSW Dmnch) Campaigning focussed on the NS\V State elections. The AEU (NSW 
Branch) worked closely with the AEU Federal Offtce and Unions NSW to maximise broader union 
participation in the stop TAFE cuts campaign. 

The reporting unit has worked with members employing authorities to improve the: status of the 
profession in all sectors through advocacy and support for the Professional Standards for Teachers, 
introduction of professional qualifications for TAFE Teachers as well as further recognition through 
improved remuneracion for teachers and education workers, improved working conditions and 
representation on various professional bodies such as the Board of Studies and The NSW Inscirute 
ofTeachers (now named BOSTES). 

The AEU (NSW Btanch) has, in conjunction with the AEU Federal office and the broader trade 
union movement made various submissions to Inquiries in relation to the industrial relations 
legislation. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
The l\EU NSW branch undertook significant work in amending its rules and strucrures tu 
harmonise: with rhe NSW Teachers Federation to achieve a single entity. On the 24 December 2014 
the Fair Work Commission ccrtifted a new set of rules which created the New Suuth Wales 
Teachers Federarion Branch of the Australian Education Union. 

Principal Activity 
The principal activity o f the entiry during the financial year was promot:J.on of union activities within 
rhe education sector. No significant change: in the nature uf these activities occurred duri11g the year. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

After Balance Date Events 
On the 24 December 2014 the New South Wales Branch of che Australian Education Union lodged 
with the Fair Work Commission a notice anJ declaration setting out parciculars of alteration to the 
N ew South Wales Branch rules. Effective from 1 January 2015, the reporting entity will acquire all 
assets and liabilities of the New South Wales Teachers Fede.racion U n.ion and operate as che provider 
of services for members of the New South Wales Teachers Federation Union. The .rcvtsed reporting 
entity will operate under the New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of the Australian 
Education Union. 

Employees / Members 
The reporting unit did not have any employees Juring the year. The number of financial members at 
31 December 2014 was 59,457 (2013: 60,225) 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisation holds a posicion as a trustee or director of a 
superannuation encity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion 
for holding weh position is that they are an officer or member of an organ.isation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resign fcom the reporting unit in accordance with rule 17, which reads as follows: 
"17- Resignation from membership and tennination of eligibility 

(1) Subject to sub-rule 17(1A) a member becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit 
w~en he/she no longer meets the conditions of eligibility for membership uf the reporting 
tUUC. 

(1A) The following persons shall after the illite referred to in sub··rule 5(12) be eligible to retain 
membership of the reporting un.it notwithstanding the fact that they are no longer eligible for 
membership within the condicions of eligibility for membership set out in rule 5: 

(a) members who are eligible for membership pursuant to paragraphs 5(3)(a), (b) or (c) and 
arc: 

(i) seconded by their employer to non-teaching duties, or 

(ii) appointed by the Minister for Education to any Board, Committee or statutory 
authority 

(b) members who were formerly eligible for membership pursuant to paragraph 5(4)(a), (b) 
or 

(c) and have commenced to be employed elsewhere in the Victorian EJucation 
Department or in a techn.ical and further education institution or by the Technical and 
Further Education Board or are seconded by thetr employer to perform professional 
duties requiring teacher qualifications; 

(d) persons who become members of the prior to the date referred to in sub-rule 5(12) 
pursuant to p2-ragraphs 5(.3)(d)or5(4)(d); 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights of members to tesign (continued) 

provided that persons who arc entitled to retain membership pursuant to this sub-rule: should 
not be entitled to retain membership after the expiration of the secondment or appointment. 

(2) A member who becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit shall within seven 
days thereof give written notice of the fact and the reason therefore to the Secre tary of the 
Branch to which he/ she is attached. 

(3) .'\. member may resign from the reporting unit by written notice addressed to and delivered to 
the Secretary o f the Branch to which the member is attached. 

(4) i\ notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the reporting unit-

(i) on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Brunch 
Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when 
the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any orher case -

(i) at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevan t 
Branch Secretary; or 

(u) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) 1\ny subscriptions, levies or fines which are due and payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relation to a period before the member's rcMgnation took effect, may be 
sued fut and recovered in the name of the, in a court uf competent jurisdiction, as a debt Jue 
to the reporting unit. 

(6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received by the 
reporting unit when it was Jdivcred. 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-ru{e (1). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it i:> not affected in accordance with trus 
section if the member is informed in writing by ot on behalf of the reporting unit that the 
resignation has been accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Sec retary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected 
in accordance with this Rule. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights of members to resign (continued) 

(1 0) Where the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous 
sub-rule the relevant Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her 
resignation has been accepted. 

(11) On receipt of a written notice from a member that he/she has become ineligible for 
membership of che reporting unit or a notice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation 
which is not effected in accordance wirh this Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon as 
possible notify che Federal Secretary that the member has become ineligible for membership 
nr thar the member has resigned." 

Committee of Management Resolution 

On 3'1 March 2015 the Committee of Management of New South Wales Teachers Federation 
Branch of the Aus tt"<Llian Education Union passed the following resolution in relation to che gene~} 
purpose financial .report (GPFR) of rhe Australian EJucarion Union (New South Wales Branch) for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2014: 

The Committee of Management Jcclares in relation to the GPPR that in irs opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the tinancial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General 
Manager; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the frnancial performance, 
financial position and cash flows of the reporting w1it for the &nancial year to which they 
relate; 

(d) there are tea:;onablc grounds to believe that the reporting entity will be able to pay ics debts 
as and when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year co which the GPFR rdates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reponing unit have been managed in accordance witb the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of .a branch concerned; anJ 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance 
with the RO Act~ and 

(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the finam:ial records of 
the reporting uojt have been kept, as far as pracci<.:able, in a manner consisten t wi th each 
of the other repocting units of the organisation; and 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCLI\L YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Committee ofManagement Resolution (continued) 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a. member of the reporting unit or 
General Manager or a Registrar duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that 
information has been provided to the member or Genetal Manager; arid 

(vi) where any order foe inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. 

(f) Where the reporting unit hM not derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity, 
include the statement 'no revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages 
activity during the reporting period' or 

(g) where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity: 

(i) the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately prepared 
in accordance with the CetJuirements of the reporting guidelines of the General Manager; 
and 

(ii) the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope of the audit 
required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity by the 
reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for the financial year in .respect of 
such activity; and 

(iii) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wage~ acttvuy or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers 
on behalf of workers other than reported in the financial report on recovery of wages 
activity and the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iv) that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has disclosed to 
members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or reimbursement of expenses 
required for recovery of wages activity, and any likdy request for donations o.t other 
contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of wages activity; and 

(v) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in rdation to recovery of wages acttvlty or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from morucs recovered from employers 
on behalf of workets unci! dic;tributions of recovered money were made to the workers. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of o fficer: John Dixon 
Title of Office held: Branch Secretary 

Signncurc: 
Dated: 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

Revenues 
Other income 5 29,416 42,423 
Inte.rest received 791 1,930 
Grants income 6 5,000 4,000 
Membership fee income 7 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total revenues 2,755,627 3,576,747 

Expenses 

Audit of financial report 8 3,600 3,600 
Capitation fees and levies 9 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total \'<IR..\ Regulations disclosures 2,724,020 3,531,994 

Travel costs 9,715 8,617 
Promotional costs 19,718 
Consulting costs 29,357 9,750 
General costs 58 623 
Financial costs 70 

Total expenses 2,763,220 3,570,702 

(Loss) I Gain for the year (7,593) 6,045 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive (Loss) I Income (7,593~ 6,045 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash e'JWvalents 5,856 19,421 
Trade anJ other receivables 5,065 
Other current assets 10 9,715 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,921 29,136 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,921 29,136 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
TraJe and other payables 11 3,665 14,287 

TOTAL CURRENT UABILITIES 3,665 14,287 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,665 14,287 

NET ASSETS 7,256 14,849 

EQUITY 
Retained earnings 7,256 14,849 

TOTAL EQUITY 7,256 14,849 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes . 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUI'IY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2014 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 31 December 2012 8,804 

Total comprehensive gain for 2013 6,045 

Balance at 31 December 2013 14,849 

Total comprehensive loss for 2014 (7,593) 

Balance at 31 December 2014 7,256 

1'hc Financial Statements shoutd be read in cunjunctiun with the accompanying notes. 

TOTAL 

$ 

8,804 

6,045 

14,849 

(7,593) 

7,256 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 
$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPE RATING ACTIVITIES 
Other receipts 34,416 
Membership fees of the AEU 2,720,420 
Interest received 791 
Payments in the course of operations (2,769,192) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 12 (a) (13,565) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net decrease in cash held (13,565) 

Cash at beginning of year 19,421 

Cash at end of the year 12 (b) 5,856 

2013 
$ 

698,757 
3,528,394 

1,930 
(4,282,703) 

(53,622) 

(53,622) 

73,043 

19,421 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
authoracive pronouncemc:ots of the Australian Accounting Standards Board ru; wc:ll as the requircmencs 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 200~. A smtement o f compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards cannot be made due to the entity applying the not-for profit section 
specific requirements contained in All'"'RS. 

The financial report is prepared on an accrual basis and is based on hi:;torical costs and does not take 
into account changing money values, or except where stated, the current value of non-monetary assets. 

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Income Tax 

N o provision fot income tax is necessary as the Australian Education Union (New South \Vales 
Branch) is exempt from tax under Sec 23(£) for the Income Ta..x Assessment Act. 

(b) Revenue 

Grant revenue is .recognised in the period in which it is received. Grant .revenue is received from the 
N ew South Wales Teachers Federation (the associated body) anJ appc:ars in that associated bodies 
audited financial stat.ements. 

Membership fees of the Australian Education Union (AEU) are recognised for the financial year to 

which they rdate. Membership fees of the AEU received in advance are recognised as a liability at 
balance date. 

Interest revenue is .recognised on a proportional basis talcjng into account the interest .rates applicable 
to those assets. 

(c) Financial Risk management objectives and policies 

The entity's principal financial instrument comprises receivables, payables and bank loans, cash and 
short tertn deposits. The entity manages credit risk in relation to trade receivable!; by undertaking 
transactions with organisations with good credit racings. 

The entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor ot group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by it. 

The consolidated entity tnana.ges its exposure to key financial risks including interest rate: risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated entity uses Jiffetent tnethods of measure and manages different 
cypes of risk to which it is cx:po:ied. These include mon.itoting levels of exposure to interest .rate and 
asses~ments of market forecasts foe interest rate prices. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(d) Risk Exposure and Responses 

lnten.rt rate nsk 
'fne entity's exposure to market interest r.ates is minimal. The level of debt is disclosed in N ote 13. 

(e) New accounting standards and interpretations 

There have been new Australian Accounting Standards and Intetpretations issued/ or amended that are 
applica.ble to the Australian Educacion Union (New South Wales Branch) but not yet effective. They 
have been considered and it is bdieved thar they have no material impact on the pre~cntarion on the 
financial report. 

(C) Relationship between AustraJian Education Union and New South Wales Teachet's 
Federation 

In 2014 rhe New South Wales Teachers Federation was an associated body of the Australian Education 
Union specified in the Australian Education Union rules. The New South Wales Teachers Federation 
membership fee included membership of the Australian Education lln.ion (New South. Wales Branch). 

Membership fees for members of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) were 
received from the New South Wales Teachers Federation as per the obligation of the New South Wales 
T eachers Federation as an assol:iated body of the Australian Education Union aml enahled by Rule 11 
(7) of the Australian Education Union mks. 

The Australian Education Union (New South. Wales Branch) notes that New South Wales Teachers 
Federation made provision for those costs in its annual budget incurred by the Australian Education 
Union (New South Wales Branch) in respect of Amlitors' fees and bank fees incurred for management 
of membership fees and audited accounts and did this as part of its obligation to collect and process 
membership fees for the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

(g) Going concern basis of accounting 

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of a going concern as NSW Teachers Federation 
has agreed to provide financial support as and when required in respect of Audito.r's fees and bank fees 
incurred for management of membership fees and audited accounts. 

(h) Critical Accounting estimates and judgments 

The committee of management evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial 
statements based on biscorical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a 
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic <.lata, obcained 
both externally and within the: consolidated entity. The committee has not made any provision for any 
critical accounting estimates and judgments. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 2: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 

No Capital Expenditure contracted for. 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

(a) Executive Officer 

The Chief Execucive Officer (Branch Secretary) during the year was John Dixon. 
No remuneracion was received by Officers ot Executive members during the year. 
Persons holding positions as Executive (committee of management) members 
during the year we.te: 

Maurie Mulheron President 
Gary Zadkovich Deputy President 
Joan Lemaire Senior Vice-President 
Jenny Diamond Branch Secretary 
John Dixon Branch Secretary 
Wemly Currie Depury Secretary 
John Dixon Depury Secretary 
Maxine Sharkey Depury Secretary 
Rod Brown Deputy Secrecary 
Wayne Webber Deputy Secretary 
Gemma Ackroyd Executive Member 
Kathryn ReUach F.Jtecutive Member 
Dianne Byers EJCecutive Member 
Philip Cooke Executive Member 
Kylic Dawson Executive Member 
Kathy Deacon Executive Member 
Sally Edsall Executive Member 
Denis Fitzgerald EJCecutive Member 
John Gaud Executive Member 
Jennifer Mace Executive Member 
Tim Mulroy EJCccucive Member 
Kathy Nicholson Executive Member 
Lindy Nolan Executive Member 
Michael Sciffer Executive Member 
Sue Simpson Executive Member 
Geoff Turnbull Executive Member 
Phil von Schoenberg Executive Member 
Margaret V os Executive Member 
Natasha Watt Executive Member 
David Wynne Executive Member 

(b) Related party transactions 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 
Elected 12 September 2014 
Resigned position 3 August 2014 
Resigned 12 September 2014 

Elected 6 May 2014 
Resigned position 15 September 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Resigned position 16 March 2014 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Elected on 6 May 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Membership fees of the AEU, paid to the Austt'.ilian Education Union during 2014 was $2,720,420 
(2013: $3,528,394). Membership fees of the AEU were .received from the New South Wales Teachers 
Federacion for the same amount. 
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AUSTRALIAN EOUCA TION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Membership fees of the AF.U are budgeted fo.r and appear in the audited financial statements of the 
New South Wales Teachers Federation (the associated body), for payment to the Australian Education 
Union (New South Wales Branch) 

NOTE 4: Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

[n accordance with the requirc:.ments of rhe Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Ace 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (l) to (3) of section 272, which reads as 
follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for 
specified prescribed in formation in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the 
person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the:: 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 
days after. the application is given to the reponing unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 

NOTE 5: OTHER INCOME 

Course/Tuition fees 
Gonski Campaign Merchandising 
Consulting 
Funding- AEU Annual Conference 

NOTE 6: GRANTS INCOME 
NSW Teachers Federa.tion 

NOTE 7: MEMBERSHIP FEE INCOME 

NSW Teachers Federation 

NOTE 8: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

Granc Thornton, Audic of financial report 

2014 
$ 

59 

29,357 

29,416 

5,000 

2,720,420 

3,600 

2013 
$ 

19,718 
10,372 
12 333 
42,423 

4,000 

3,528,394 

3,600 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 9: CAPITATION FEES AND LEVIES 

All paid to AEU f'ede.ral Office 
ACTU Campaign fees 
ACTU Subscription fees 
Capitation fees 
Education International fees 

Publication T .evy (A) -Australian Educator 
Publication Levy (B) -T AFE Teacher 
Public Education Campaign fees 
Public Education Campaign Advertising 
Federal Election Campaign Advertising 

NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Travel costs-2014 AEU Annual Conference 

Received from NSW Teachers Federation 

NOTE 11: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Audit Fees- Payable to Grant Thornton 
Travel costs - 2014 AEU Annual Conference, 
Payable to AEU - Fe<.leral Office 
Registration cmts- Union Governance 

NOTE 12: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

(a) Reconciliation of net cash inflow from 
operating activities to operating surplus: 
Operating Ooss) /surplus 
C-hanges in assets and Liabilities during the financial 
year: 

(Increase)/Decrease in debtors 
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets 

(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 

Net cash .flows from operating activities 

(b) Cash at the end of the financial year is reconciled 
to items in the statement of financial position as 
follows: 

Cash at bank 

2014 
$ 

120,046 
214,282 

1,668,639 
141,654 

188,398 
18,682 

180,069 

188,650 
2,720,420 

3,600 

65 
3,665 

(7,594) 

(65) 
4,716 

(10,622) 

(13,565) 

5,856 

2013 
$ 

124,476 
213,476 

1,679,804 
11B,R74 

189,087 
19,410 

186,714 
996,552 

3,528,394 

9,715 

3,600 

10,687 

14,287 

G,045 

652,334 
(9,715) 

(702,286) 

(53,622) 

19,421 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 13: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

1. 'he Branch does not participate in the use of derivative financial .instruments. 

(a) Credit Risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or any other security, at 
balance date to recognise ti.nancial assets is the cart:ying amount, net of any provi:>ion for doubtful 
debts, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk cxposute to any single debtor or group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by the Branch. 

(b) Net Fair Values 

The net fair values of debtors, loans and other amounts are determined by discoun ting the cash flows, 
at the market interest rates of similar secutities, to their present values. 

The carrying amount of all fin::~ncial assets and liabilities does not exceed their net fair value. 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

The Branch exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will 
fluctuate as a .result of changes .in market in terest rates is minimal as all financial assets and liabilicies are 
non-interest bearing. 

(d) Sensitivity Analysis 

The Branch has no exposure to interest rate tisk. 

NOTE 14: ADMINISTRATION OF THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE BRANCH 

New South Wales Teachers Federation .is an associated body of the Australian E ducation Union 
specified in the Australian Education Union tules. The N ew South Wales Teachers federation 
membership fee includes membership of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Bra.nch). 

Membership fees for members of the Australian Education Union (N ew South Wale:~ Branch) are 
received from the New South Wales Teachers Federation as per the obligation of the New South Wales 
Teachers Federation as an associated body of the Australian Education Union and enabled by Rule 11 
(7) of the Australian Education Union rules. 

The .Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) notes that New South Wales Teachers 
Federation continues to tnakc: provision for those costs in its annual budget incurred by the: Aus tralian 
Education Union (New South Wales Branch) in respect of Auditors' fees and bank fees incurred for 
management of membership fees and auditeJ accounts and does this as part of its obligation to collect 
and process membership fees for the Australian I:::ducation Union (New South Wales Branch). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 14: ADMINISTRATION OF THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE BRANCH 
{CONTINUED) 

Any surplus i~ retained within the AEU (NSW Branch) and is not distributed untiL the entity is wound 
up. 

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

From the 1$1 January 2015 the new roles of the New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of the 
Australian Education Union came into effect. The assets and liabilities of the Australian Education 
Union and NSW Teachers Federation will be transferred to the new entity. 

NOTE 16: ORGANISATION DETAILS 

The registered office and principal place of business of me Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) is 23-.33 Mary Street Surry Hills. 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Level17. 383 Kent Sll'eet 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Comtspondence to: 
Locked Bag aaoo 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 

T +U1 Z 8297 2400 
F +U1 2 9299 4445 
E infQ.osw@su.gl.com 
W W\WI,g;.mllhomiOn.com.au 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying flnancial report of Australian Education Union (NSW 
Branch) (the ''Branch"), which comprises the statement of ftnancial position as at 31 
December 2014. and the statement of profit or. loss and comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising 
a sununary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the 
flnancial report and Committee Management resolution of the entity. 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report 
The Committee of Management of the Branch are responsible for the preparation and fai.c 
presentation of the ftnancial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. This responsibility includes establishing 
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or er.ror, 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable in the circutnstances . 

.Audlto,.s responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the ftnancial report based o:n our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with .Australian Auditing Standards which require us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
p~rf<>rm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedUJ:es to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the ftnancial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor,s 
judgement, including the assessment of the .risks of material misstatement of the ftnancial 
report, whether due to fraud ur errur. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Branch's preparation and fair presentation of the ftnancial report in order to design audit 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389 

'Gtanl Thoti1!'1:W'f reff!l! lo th&tnntl uf\da W'tlidt !he Gu1nl Jhantal membet firms pi:IIOide assvrant-t. tu and adtti&Cift' ~ees.1o !hell ditl'\ta •l'ld.ll::r ro!ers to oete w more mell'lber linn$. :u tl& 
cooladroquros 1'1':11\llhom""' Aus~<fa Lid is a me~ f<m ol Grarll Tlonloo lnt•m31ian:llld (GTil). GTIL al\d liwlme!l'lber flrmt "'" nou -d• pamflllhip t;l1L ond eodl men>b•r firm 
i< •-r>lel~~ enOiy.SMIIoee oto~erc<l by lhom•mb .. forms Gllldoesnolp<cw~o>eMe<~slodianl• GTIL..,dil&membar lirmt:ll'tAot-laol, anddonot<illigalt<l!< oooO~er and 
aJe nol~able C!K ~ff anott«•s acls ot ori5!ion:s.ln ltte ,1\val'bli~n oonl&~t (7//y. fie use ot !he lewm 'Gt8111 Thomtn' may relet to G'ant lhatiiD ~'!tala Umiled ASH 41 tl7 558J8.9 .ar~d ilf: 
Au.fbl'IIMI 'lUhsidiariesattd rdaled eflti!ie(., GTIL i5 nUl al'l Auslralian tela!.ed enltf to Gl.aot Tllanlot'l Alls.tah litni!ed 

Liability limned by a scheme appt oved "nder rrofe~siTWll Stamtauls l~tslation Liability i:; lirni!eCI in those Slates where ~ current 
:;ciJeme applies 
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0 GrantThornton 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nor for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An audit ilso includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the fmancial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienr and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Auditor's Opinion 
In our opinion, 

a Satisfactory accounting records were kept by the Branch in respect of the year ended 31 
December 20t4, induJing: 

Records of the sources and nauu:e of the income of the Branch (induding income 
from members); and 

ii Records of the nature and purposes of expenditure of the Br.anch. 

b The financial report of the B.mnch is in accordance with the requirements imposed by 
Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act and applicable Australia Accounting Standards 
including the Australian Account Interpretations. 

c The financial report of the Branch: 

Presents fairly, in all material respects, the Branch's fmancial position as at 31 
December 2014 and its performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

ii Complies wirh Australia Accounting Standards and the relevant legislation. 

d Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd are registered auditors, members of Chartered 
Accountants Australia and New Zealand and hold a current Public Practice Certificate. 

e We have concluded that management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
rhc preparation of the Branch's fmanciil statements is appropriate. 

We have obtained aU the information and t!Xplanatioos we required from rhe officers and 

employees of the Branch, which were necessary for rhe purposes of our audit, and there 
were no deficiencies, failures or shortcomings in relation to the matters referred to above. 

1 '""" t ik., .. ..-. +o ..... 
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

A G Rigele 

Partner - Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

13 

These accounts ace a concise report of the activities of the New South Wales Branch of the federal 
union, the Auslralian Education Union. 

The principal activity of the Branch during the year was the protection and improvement of 
employment conditions for its members and tht: fJ.nancial activity was mostly limited to the receipt of 
funds collected on behalf of the Federal branch of the union by the New South Wales Teachers 
fedcn~funds we" received •nd then '""'fetted to the fede"l union. 

/~on 
~£~SECRETARY 

SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

The financial statements of the Union have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the 
Pair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the following summary is provided for members 
.in accordance wim Section 279(2) of the Act. 

A copy of the Auditors' Report, Accounts and Statements will be supplied free of charge to membe.IS 
who request same. 

Certificates required to be given under the Act by the Accounting Officer and the Committee of 
Management have been completed m accordance with the provisions of the Act and contain no 
qualifications. The financial statements, specific disclosures and other information included in me 
concise flrutncial report are derived from, and are consistent wi.th, the full fmancial report of 
Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) .Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads 
as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

(1) . ..\ member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit 
for specified pn:scribed information in .relation to the reporting unit to be made available 
to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Your committee presents the concise report on the union for the financial yeac ended 31 December 2014. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of management in office at any time during the financial year was: 

Maurie Mulheron President 
Gary Zadkovich Deputy President 
Joan Lemaire Senior Vice-President 
Jenny Diamond Branch Secretary Resigned position 24 July 201 4 
Johtl Dixon Branch Secretary Elected 12 September 2014 
Wendy Currie Deputy Sec.reta.cy Resigned position 3 August 2014 
Jo hn Dixon Deputy Sec.retaty Resigned position 12 September 2014 
Maxine Sharkey Deputy Sccrecary 
Rod Brown Deputy Secretary E lected 6 May 2014 
Wayne Webber Deputy Secretary Resigned position 15 September 2014 
Gemma Ackroyd Execurive Member 
K athryn Bellach Executive Member 
Dianne Byers Executive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
Philip Cooke Executive Member 
K ylic Dawson Executive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
Kathy D eacon Executive Member 
SaUy Edsall E xecutive Member Resigned position 31 March 20'14 
Derris Fitzgerald E xecutive Member 
John Gaud Executive Member Resigned position 16 March 2014 
Jennifer Mace Executive Member 
Tim Mulroy Executive Member 
Kathy Nicholson Executive Member Resigned position 24 July 2014 
Tlndy Nolan Executive Mcmbet: 
Michael Sciffer Executive Member 
Sue Simpson Executive Member Resigned posicion 31 March 2014 
Geoff Turnbull Executive Member 
Phil von Schoenbetg Executive Member Elected on 6 May 201 4 
Margaret Vos Executive Membet 
N atasha Watt Executive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
David Wynne Executive Member 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Review of Operations 
A review of the operar.ions of the union during the financial year and the results of those operations found that 
during the year, the cnriry continued to engage in its principal activiry, the results of which are <.tisdoscd in the 
attached financial statements. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
The AEU NSW branch undertook significant work in amending irs rules and structures to harmonise with 
the NSW Teachers Federation to achieve a single entity. On the 24 December 2014 the Fa1r Work 
Commission certified a new set of rules which created the New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
of the Australian E ducation Union. 

Principal Activity 
The principal activity of the entiry during the financial year was promotion of union activities wid1in the 
education :;ector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 
On the 24 December 2014 the New South Wales Branch of the Australian Education Union lodged with 
the Fair Work Commission a notice and declaration setting ouc particulars of alteration to the N ew South 
Wales Branch rules. Effective from 1 J anuary 2015, the reporting entity will acquire all assets and liabilities 
of the New South \Vales Teachers Federation Union and operate as the provider of services for members 
of the New South Wales Teachers Federation Union. The revised reporting enticy will operate under the 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of the Australian Education Union. 

Employees/Members 
The reporting unit did not have any employees during the year. The number of financial members at 31 
December 2014 was 59,457 (2013: 60)25) 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisar.ion holds a position as a trustee or 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme: where 
for holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resij.,>n from the reporting unit in accordance with mlt: 17, which reads as follows: 
"17 - Resignation from membership and tern'Lination of eligibility 

director of a 
the criterion 

(1) Subject to sub-rule 17(1 A) a member becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit when 
he/she no longer meets the conditiom of eligibility for membership of the reporting unit. 

(1A) The following persons shall afcer the date referred to in sub-rule 5(12) be eligible to retain membership 
of the reporting unit notwithstanding the fact that they are no longer eligible for membership within the 
conditions of cligibillcy for membership set out in rule 5: 

(a) members who are eligible for membership pw:suant to paragraphs S(J)(a), (b) or (c) and are: 

(i) seconded by their employer to non-teaching duties, or 

(ii) appointed by the Minister foe Education to any Board, Committee or statutory authority 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rlghts of members to resign (continued) 

(b) members who were formerly eligible for membership pursuant to paragraph 5(4)(a), (b) or 

(c) and have commenced to be employed elsewhere in the Vtctorian Education Department or in a 
technical l\nd further education instirution or by the Technical and Further Education Board or 
arc seconded by their employer to perform professional duties requiring teacher qualifications; 

(d) persons who become members uf the prior to the date referreu to in sub-rule 5(12) pursuant to 
pu.ragraphs 5(3)(d)or5(4)(d); 

provided that persons who are en tided to retain membership pursuant to this sub-rule should not 
be entitled to retain membership after the expiration of the seeondrncnt or appointment. 

(2) A member who becomes ineligible foe tt1embership of the reporting unit shall within seven days 
thereof give written notice of the fact lUld rhe reason therefore to the Secretary of the Branch to 
which he:/ she is attached. 

(3) A member may resign from the reporting unit by written notice addressed to and delivered to the 
Secretary of the Branch to whkh the member is attached. 

(4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-

(a) where the:: member ceases to be eligible to become a member of che reporting unit-

(0 on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary; 
or 

(ii) on the day specified in rhe notice, which. is a day not earlier than the:: Jay when the 
member ceases to be eligible to become a membec; which is later; or 

(b) in any other case-

(i) at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch. 
Secretary; or 

(li) on th.e day specified in che notice; whichever is later. 

(5) :'\ny subscriptions, levies or fines which are due and payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relation to a period before:: the member's resignation took effect, may be sued for and 
recovet'ed in the name of tbe, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a Jebt Jue:: to the reporting unit. 

(6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to h.avc been received by the reporting 
unit when it was delivered. 

(7) A notice:: of resignation that h:~s been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is not invalid 
because it was not addressed and Jdivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights of members to resign (continued) 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not affec ted in accordance with this section if the 
member is informed in wricing by or on behalf of the reporting unit that the resignation has been 
accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected in 
accordance with this Rule. 

(10) Where the relevant Branch Sec.rcW"y accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous Where the 
relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous sub-rule the relevant 
Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her resiguation has been accepted. 

(11) On receipt of a written notice from a member that he/she h as become ineligible for membership of the 
reporting unit or a uor.ice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation which is not effected in 
accocdance with this Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon as possible notify the Federal Secretary 
that the member has become ineligible for membership or that the member has resigned." 

Committee of Management Resolution 
On 31 March 2015 rhe Committee of Management of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) 
passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose fmancial report (GPFR) of the Australian 
Education Union (New South Wales Branch) for the financial year ended 31 D ecember 2014: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the fmancial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager; 

(c) the financial statemeot5 and notes give a crue and fair view of the financial pc.rfocmance. ftnancial 
position and car-;h flows of the reponing unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that tbe reporting entity will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due :mJ payable; 

(e) Juring the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(li) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have bee.o managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the 
RO Act; and 

(iv) where the o rganisation consist:; of two or mure reporting units, the financial records of the 
reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, io a manner consistent with each of the other 
reporting units of the organisation; and 
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AUSTRAUAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Committee of Management Resolution (continued) 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit Ot: General 
Manager or a Registrar duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information has been 
provided to the member or General Manager; and 

(v~ where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Faic Work Commission 
under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. 

(£) Where the reporting unit has not derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity, include 
the statement 'no revenue has been derived from Wldertaking recovery of wages activity during the 
reporting period' or 

(g) where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity: 

(i) the financial report on recovery o f wages activity has been faicly and accu.ca.tely prepared in 
acconlance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the General Manager; and 

(.U) the commlrree of management insrrucred the auditor to include in the scope of the audit required 
under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity by the reporting unit from 
which revenues had been derived for the financial year in respect of such activity; and 

(iii) no fees or reimbursements o f expenses in .relation to recovery of wages activity or do nations ot: 
other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers on behalf of workecs 
other than reported in the financial report on recovery of wages activity and the notes to the 
financial statements; and 

(iv) that prio.r to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has disclosed to members 
by way of a written policy all fees ro be charged or reimbursement of expen:;es required for 
recovery of wages activity, and any likdy request for donations or othet contributions in acting for 
a worker in recovery of wages activity; and 

(v) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in celation to recovery of wages activity or donations or 
o ther contributions were deducted from monies reco~rcd from employers on behalf of workers 
until distributions of recovered money were made to the workers. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of officer: John Di.'l:on 
Title of Office held: Branch Secretary 

Dated: 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Info em arion on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) Financial Report 

The financial statements and discl.osures in the concise financial n:port have been derived from the 31 
December 2014 financial rc:port of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) and cannot be 
expected to provide as full understanding of the financial performance, fmancial position and financial and 
investing activities of the reporting nnit as the: full report. 

The discussion and analysis is provided to a:>sist members in understanding the concise ftnancial report. The 
discussion and analysis is based on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) ftnanci~ l 
st:..tements and the information contained in the concise financial report has been derived from the full 
2014 Financial Report of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

Loss for the year was $7,593, this compared co a gaio .in 2013 year of $6,045. The loss for the: year is due 
primarily to the Branch receiving a grant from NSW Teachers Federation .in advance (2013) for travel costs 
associated with the 2014 ARU Annual Conference. Membership fee income of the Branch was $2,720,020 
representing a decrease of 22.9% from the prior year (2013: $3,528,394). The decrease is primarily due to nil 
collection of fees for the national public education campaign compared to (2013: $996,552). 

Statement of Financial Position 

Cash and ca:;h equivalents has decreased by $13,565 for the year due to timing differences .in payments in 
the course of operations. 
Trade and other receivables balance is 55,065 compared tu (2013: JNTL), represents ciming differences for 
payments rcceiveJ from NSWTF. 
Trade and other payable:; balance is $3,665 (2013:$14,287) representing a movement of $10,622, the 
movement is attributable to payment of 2014 AEU Annual Conference travel invoice to AEU federal 
office. 

Equity has dec.ceascd to $7,256 (2013: $14,849) the decrease is attributable to the operating deficit for the 
period of ~7 ,593. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash at bank balance of$5,856 (2013:S19,421), the movemcmof$13,565 is represented by additional 
payments in the coUl'se of operations during the year. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 

2014 
$ 

CURRENf ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalenrs 5,856 
Trade and other .receivables 5,065 
Oilier current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,921 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,921 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 3,665 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,665 

TOTAL UABILITIES 3,665 

NET ASSETS 7,256 

EQUITY 
Retained earnings 7,256 

TOTAL EQUITY 7,256 

2013 
$ 

19,421 

9,715 

29,136 

29,136 

14-,287 

14 287 

14,287 

14,849 

14,849 

14,849 

8 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

Revenues 

Other income 29,416 42,423 
Interest received 791 1,930 
Grants income 5,000 4,000 
Membership fee income 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total revenues 2,755,627 3 576,747 

Expenses 

Audit of fUlancial report 3,600 3,600 
Capi tation fees paid to Federal Office 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,724,020 3,531,994 

Travel cos ts 9,715 8,617 
Promotion costs 19,718 
Consulting costs 29,357 9,750 
General costs 58 623 
Financial costs 70 

2,763,220 3,570,702 
Total expenses 

(Loss)/Gain for the year (7,593) 6,045 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive (Loss)/lncome (7,593) 6,045 
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AUSTRAUAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUI1Y FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEl\mER 
2014 

Retained TOTAL 
Earnings 

$ $ 

Balance at 31 December 2012 8,804 8,804 

Total comprehensive gain for 2013 6,045 6,045 

Balance at 31 December 2013 14,849 14,849 

Total comprehensive los~> for 2014 (7,593) (7,593) 

Balance at 31 December 2014 7,256 7,256 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

2014 
$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERAT ING ACTIVITIES 

Other receipts 34,416 
Membership fees o f the AEU 2,720,420 
Interest received 791 
P ayments in the course of op erations (2,769,192) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (13,565) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net decrease in cash held (13,565) 

Cash at beginning o f year 19,421 

Cash at end of the year 5,856 

2013 
$ 

698,757 
3,528,394 

1,930 
(4,282,7032 

(53,622) 

(53,622) 

73,043 

19,4Zl 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNJON 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 1: Basis ofPrep:uation of the Concise Financial Report 

The concise financial report is an extract for the full financial report for the year ended 31 December 
2014. The concise financial report has been prepared .in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 
1039: Concise financial Reports. 

The fioancial statements, specific disclosures and other information included in the concise financial 
report an: derived from, and ate consistent with, the full financial report of Ausc.calian Education Union 
(New South Wales Branch). The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as detailed an 
understanding of the fioancial performance, financial position and financing and investing acciv1ties of 
Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) as the full fina ncial .report. A copy of the full 
financial report and auditor's report \\.ill be sent to any member, free o f charge, upon reques t. 

The financial report of Austmlian Education Union (Nc:\v South Wales B ranch) complies with all 
Accounting Standanls, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other auchocirative 
pronouncements of the 1\ustralian Accounting Standards RoarJ as well as the requirements of the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. A statement of compliance with Intern~tiooal Financial 
Reporting Standards cannot be made due ro the entity applying the not-for profit section specific 
requirements contained in 1\IFRS. The presentation currency used in this concise financial report is 
Ausa:aliao dollars. 

Note 2: Relationship between Australian Education Union and New South Wales Teachers 
Federation 

In 2014 the New South Wales Teachers 1-'ederation was an associated body of the Ausualian Education 
Union specified in the Australian Education Union mles. The New South Wales Teachers F ederation 
membership fee included membership of the Australian Educacion Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Membership fees for members of the Austnlian Education Union (New South Wales Br.anch) were 
received from the New South Wales Teachers Federation as per the obligation of the New South Waks 
Teachers Federation as an associated body of the i\u:malian Education Union and enabled by Rule 11 (l) 
of the Ausualian F.ducation Union rules. 

The Austr.llian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) notes tha t New South Wales Teachers 
Federation made provision for those costs in its annual budget incUired by the Austcaliw Education 
Union (New South Wales Branch) in respect of Auditors' fees and bank fees incurred for management of 
membership fees and audited accounts and did this as part of its obligation to collect and process 
membership fees foe the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

lewl17, 383 Kent Sln!el 
S)'dne~ NSW 2000 

COIT'e3pordence ID: 
Locked Bag oeoo 
CNB PO$\ O!tlce 
Sydney NSN 1230 

T ~1 2 82972400 
F ~1 2 9299 4445 
E lnlo.nsw@au.gt.com 
w-.grantiiiCJTIIOO.conl.au 

We have audited the accompanying concise financial .cc:por r of Australian Education Union 

(NSW Branch) (the: "Branch"), comprising the statc:.mc:.at of fmancial position as at 3 1 

Dc:cc:mbc:t 2014, the statement of profit or loss and othc:.c comprehensive incutnc:, statement 

of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for, and related notc.'i, which was derived 

from the financial tc:port of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) for the year ended 

31 December 2014. We expressed an urunodified auditor's opinion on that financial report 

on our auditor's report dated 31 March 2015. 

Responsibility of the Colftllllttee of Management for the financial report 
The Committee of Management of the Branch arc responsible for the preparation and fait 

presen tation of the concise financial report in accordance with Accounting Standud AASB 
1039 Concise Financial Reports. This responsibility includes establishing and m aintaining in 

internal control relevant to che pcepuation of the concise ftnancial report; selecting and 

applying appt.optiate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circwnstances. 

Auditor's re•ponaibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion un the co ncise ftnancial report based on our 
ptocedures which were conducted in accordance with Au.<u.ral ian Auditing Standards of the 

financial rcpon of the Australlan E ducation Union (NSW Branch) for the year c:.aded 31 

December 201 4. Our audit report on the financial report for the year was signed on 31 
March 201 S and was not subject to any modification. The Australian Auditing Standards 

require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 

plan and perform the audit ro obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report for 

the year is free from matccial misstatement. 

Grant Thornton Audft Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thomton Australia ltd ABN 41 1 'll 556 389 

'(h'I!TIIorwlon'r~ .. lollebr!lil4.....,.,.idllltGt,..ll••"""...-.,.......,. -IN..W l!!'lioooy loMoertotiDnieo:•o:<ll<rrlltnlo""''" -·-&.,., .... 
~req<Ji'el Gtent f-!WHtlWil•or:.-lr.,dQ.,.-~ellWI<lii.J 6fll.nh-lrmurenol•..mt-JJ<ril«li'<~> GnlN-II'ft'l'orr.., 
I& • ' "'""*teg>l ll!lilj> Slltl!aos•• ~~~~'''"'''''1>6' lill!< GTI.-Odp~V'<ido ..,.._loclowl! .. r.lll. ood~,.,..m,., bl$araM>I~""'" "'·'"' dor.oldJip lo on< onof>ot or.ol 
oro nol Ublelo! .r.e ~er'• 11<b oro01l....,o.ln tie Ao<1r.., Ollllle"' .W,. t..u ... olt..!tnn 'Gooll-""'1 n!l<r lo GrW11 !llornlon A .. tr.nUmilocl ASH 41 121568 JS9 4'\d lis 
.luorlll•' """'diariet "'d rel>lod .. ~~ OTil l• n•tan,..,ohl"' r<!.tO!Ientily 1o Gfllll ill<Yntm-ola u.~. 

L1ollility limited by a S!;h l~rne approved tmde• Professional Slaodards loqtslanon llab•hly •s limited in those Stales where 3 Cllflenl 
scheme applies 
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0 GrantThornton 

Our procedures in respect of the concise financial report inclu<k<.l testing that the 

informacion in the concise financial report is derived from, and is consistent with, the 

financial report for the year, and examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the 

amounts and other di:sclosures which were not directly derived from the financial report for 

the year. These ptocedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all 
material res peers, the concise fmancial report complies with Accounting Standard A.ASB 

1039 Concise Financial Reports. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for ow audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Auditor's opinion 
In our opinion, the infol1Ilation reported in the concise fmancia.l .report is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the frnancial report from which it was derival and complies with the 

Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements and the requirements 

imposed by Part 3 of Chaptcr 8 of the RO Act. For a better understanding of the financial 
position of Australian Education Union (NSWBranch) as at 31 December 2014, its 

financial performance foe the year ended and the scope of our audit, the concise frnanci.al 

report should be read. in conjunction with the unabridged fmancial report and the auditor's 

repo.rt thereon. l'vfanagcment's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the Bcanch•s financial statements is appropnate. 

~ '""'t 1h., ...... f.o"' 

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT P'IY L1D 
Chartered Accountants 

A G Rigde 
Partner - Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 31 Ma.rch 2015 
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Attachment C 

!3RANCH SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 

I, John Dixon, Branch Secretary, Australian Education Union (NSWIF Branch) do certify that: 

1. I am an Officer authorised by the Australian Education Union (NSWIF Branch) Rules to 
lodge these documents. 

2. The New South Wales Branch Executive of the Australian Education Union (NSWIF 
Branch) held a meeting In accordance with t11e rules on 28 April2015 at which the 
Executive passed a resolution concerning the accounts as presented, 

3, The Branch Executive at the aforementioned meeting carried the following resolution: 

That In accordance with the Fair Work (RO) Act 2009, the Branch Executive of the 
Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) acting as the Committee of Management, 
resolves that members wiN be provided with a copy of the Concise Financial Report for the 
financial period ended 31 December 2014 and that the members shall be provided free of 
charge with a copy of the full report where they make a request. 

4. The copies of both the concise report being lodged is the document provided to members 
of the Australian Education Union (NSWIF Branch) website: 
hUp:/twww.nswtf.org,au/pages!aeu-financial-report-2014.html on and from 2nd April2015. 

Notification of the report's availability on the website was printed in the April edition of the 
magazine of the union, Education. 

5. The copy of the full report being lodged is the document presented to the meeting of the 
State Executive of the Australian Education Union (NSWIF Branch) on 28 Apri12015. 





Ms Bernadette O'Neill 
General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne Vic. 3001 

Dear Ms O'Neill 

Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
23-33 Mary Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010 
NSW Branch President: Maurie Mulheron 
NSW Branch Secretary: John Dixon 

Telephone: (02) 9217 2100 
Facsimile: (02) 9217 2470 

6/05/2015 

REF:360/2015/JD/EF 

Re: Financial Documents for the Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) 
For financial period ended 31 December 2014 

In accordance with s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, I hereby lodge: 

(a) A copy of the AEU (NSWfF Branch) Financial Report for the financial period 31 
December 2014 (Attachment A:); 

(b) A copy of the concise report provided to members (Attachment B); and 

(c) Secretary's Certificate that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided 
to members and presented to the meeting of the NSWTF Branch Executive of the 
Australian Education Union on 31 March 2015 (Attachment C). 

Yours sincerely 

John Dixon 
NSWTF Branch Secretary 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

The committee presents its repo.rt on the reporting unit for che financial year ended 31 December 
2014. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of management in office at any time during the financial 
year was: 

Maurie Mulhewn 
Gary Zadkovich 
Joan Lemaire 
Jenny Diamond 
John Dixon 
Wendy Currie 
John Dixon 
Maxine Sharkey 
Rod Brown 
Wayne Webber 
Gemma Ackroyd 
Kathryn Bellach 
Dianne Byers 
Philip Cooke 
Kyiie Dawson 
Kathy Deacon 
Salty Edsall 
Denis Fitzgerald 
John Gauci 
Jennifer Mace 
Tim Mulroy 
Kathy Nicholson 
Lindy Nolan 
Michael Sciffc:r 
Sue Simpson 
Geoff Turnbull 
Phil von Schoenberg 
Margaret. Vos 
Natasha Watt 
David Wynne 

President 
Deputy President 
Senior Vice-President 
Branch Secretary 
Branch Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy .Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
.t:xecurive Member 
Executive: Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Membe.r 
Execu rive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 
Elected 12 September 2014 
Resigned position 3 August 2014 
Resigned posicion 12 September 2014 

Elected 6 May 2014 
Resigned position 1 S September 2014 

Elected 12 .September 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Resigned position 16 March 2014 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Elected on 6 May 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Review of Principal Activities and Results of Operations 

The AEu (NSW Branch) Executive sc:t the following strategic objectives for rhe year 2013-14: 
• Increase Government funding to public schools and TAPE institutes. 

Enhance and support the professional ~tatus of A.EU (NSW Branch) members m public 
education. 

• Protect and promote quality teaching and teaming . 
• Protect and enhance the industrial eights of AEU (NS \V Branch) members . 

Promote human tights and social justice. 

The principal activities of the AEU (NSW Branch) during the: financial year have focussed on the: 
achievement of these strategic objeccivcs. 

Tn rdation tu the first objective:, the A£U (NSW Branch) "T give a Gonski" campaign at the: 
national, state and school cotnmunity level focussed on getting community and government support 
for rhc: replacement of the existing incqu.ltablc federal schools funding model by a new funding 
model based on the findings of the Gonski Schooh Fumling review Pand, i.e. funding ali schools to 
the resource standard ncccssacy for every student to be given the opportunity co succeed regardless 
o f their family background or circumstances. The: AEU conr:inucs to catnpaign for the: re-elccrion of 
n federal guvunment which would commit to and honour a better education tor all Australian 
children. 

{n the face of the increasing privar:isation of TAPE, the Stop TAFE Cuts campaign was prosecuted 
by the: AET.J (NSW Branch) Campaigning focussed on the NSW State elections. The: AEU (NSW 
Rtanch) worked closely with the AEU Federal Office and unions NSW to maximise broader union 
participation in the stop TAFF. cuts campaign. 

The reporting unit has worked with members employing authorities to improve the status of the 
profession in all sectors through advocacy and support for the Professional Standards for Teacher.;, 
introduction of professional qualifications for TAFE Teachers as well as further recognition through 
improved remunet·ation for reachers and education workers, improved working conditions and 
representation on various professional bodies such as the Board of Studies and The NSW Institute 
of Teachers (now named BOSTES). 

The AEU (NSW Branch) has, in conjunction with the AEU Federal office and the broader trade: 
union movement made various submissiom to Inquiries in relation to the industrial relations 
legislation. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
The A..EU NSW branch unclertook significant work in amending its rules and strucrures to 
harmonise with rhe NSW Teachers Federation to achieve a single entity. On the 24 December 2014 
the Fair Work Commission certified a nc:w set of ruks which created the New South \Valcr-; 
Teachers Federntion Brat1ch of the t\.uscralian Education Union. 

Pctndpal Activity 
The principal activity of the entity during the financial year wal\ ptomorion of union activities within 
the education sector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred Juring the year. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNlON 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANClAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

After Balance Date Events 
On the 24 December 2014 the New South Wales Branch of the Australian Education Union lodged 
with the f<air Work Commission a notice am1 declaration setting out particulars of alteration to the 
New South \Vales Branch rules. Effecrive from 1 January 2015, the reporting entity will acquire all 
assets and liabilities of the New South Wales Teachers Federation Union and operate as chc provider 
of services for members of the N ew South Wales Teachers Federation Union. The revised reporting 
entity will operate under the New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of che Australian 
Education Union. 

Em ployees/Membe.ts 
The reporting unit did not have any employees during the year. The number of financial members at 
31 December2014-was 59,457 (2013: 60,225) 

Superannuation Trustees 
No offtcc.t or member of rhe o.r:ganisarion holds a pos10on as a trustee or director of a 
superano\.lation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion 
for holding such posi tion is that they arc an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may .resign from the reporting unit in accordance with ndc 17, which read5 as follows: 
"17 -Resignation from membership and te.rrnination of eligibility 

(1) Subject to sub-rule 17(1t\) a member becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit 
when he/she no longer met:t:s the conditions of eligibility for membership of the reporting 
uoic. 

(lA) The following persons shall after the Jate referred to in sub-mlc: 5(12) be eligible co retain 
membership of the reporting unit notwithstanding the fact that they are no longer eligible for 
membership within the condirions of digibility for membership set out in rule 5: 

(a) members who are eligible for membership pursuant to paragraphs 5(3)(a), (b) or (c) and 
are: 

(i) seconded by their employer to non-teaching duties, or 

(ii) appointed by rhe Minister for F.ducatiotl to any Board, Committee or statutory 
authority 

(b) members who were formerly eligible for membership pursuant to paragraph 5(4)(a), (b) 
or 

(c) and have commenced to be employed elsewhere in the Victorian Education 
Department or in a tcchnic:J and further education institution ot by the Technical and 
Further Education Board or are 5econdcd by their employer to perform profesRtonal 
duties requiring teacher qualifications; 

(d) persons who become members of the prior to the date referred to in sub-rule 5(12) 
pursuanc to paragraphs 5(3)(d)or5(4)(d); 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights of members to resign (continued) 

provided that persons who are encitled to retain membership pursuant to this sub-rule should 
not be entitled to retain membership after the expiration of the secondmem or appointment. 

(2) A member who becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit shall within seven 
days thereof give written notice of the fact and the reason therefore to the Secretary of the 
Branch to which he/she is attached. 

(3) A member may resign from the reporting unit by written notice addressed to and delivered to 
the Secretary of the Branch to which the member is attached. 

(4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the reporting unit-

(i) on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 
Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in rhe notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when 
the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other au;e-

(i) at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant 
Braoch Secretary; ot 

(ii) on rhe day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which arc due and payable but have not been paid by a 
fanner member in celation to a period before the member's rcstgnation took effect, may be 
sued for and recovered in the name of the> in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due 
to the reporting unit. 

(6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received by the 
reporting wli t when it was delivered. 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance ""W;th sub-rule (1). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not affected in ac.:cordance with this 
section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the reporting unit that the 
resignation has been accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a re:;ignation from membership which is not effected 
in accordance with this Rule. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPE RATING REPORT 
FOR TH E FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBE R 2014 

Rights of members to resign (continued) 

(10) Where the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the prn'ious 
:.ub-rule the relevant Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her 
resignation has been accepted. 

(11) On receipt of a wriue::n notice from a member chat he/ she has become ineligible for 
membership of ilie reporting unit or a notice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation 
which is not effected in accordance with thi;; Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon as 
possible notify the i'eJeral Secretary that the member has become ineligible for membership 
or that the member has resigned." 

Committee of Management Resolution 

On 31 March 2015 the Committee of Management of New South Wales T eachers Fede tation 
Branch of the Australian Education Union passed the following resolution in relation to the general 
purpose financial report (GPf'R) of the Australian Education Cnion (New South Wales Branch) for 
the financial year ended 31 D ecember 2014: 

The Committee ofManageme::n t Jeclares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) tbe tinancial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General 
Manager; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 
financial position and cash Aows of the reporting unit for the f1nancial year to which they 
relate; 

(d) there a.re reasonable grounds to believe that rhe reporting entity will be able to pay its debts 
as and when they become due and payable; 

(e) Juring the financial year to which the GPf'R relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concemed; and 

(ii) rhe financial affairs of the reporting unit have been man<~.geJ in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a btanch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have: been kepc and maintained in accordance 
with the RO Act; and 

(iv) where the organisation consists of cwo or more reporting units, the financial records of 
the repor.ting unit have been kept, as far as praccicable, in a manner consistent with each 
of the other reporting units of the organisatiun; and 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Committee of Management Resolution {continued) 

(v) where information has been sought in any reques t by a member o f the reporting unit or 
General Manager or a Registrar duly made: under section 272 of the: RO Act, that 
information has bc:c:n provided to the member or General Manager; and 

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. 

(f) \Vhcrc the reporting unit has not derived revenue frotn undertaking recovery of wages activity, 
include the statement 'no revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages 
activity during the reporting period' or 

(g) where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity: 

(i) the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the General Manager; 
and 

(ii) the committee of management insuucted the: auditor to include in the: scope of the audit 
required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovexy of wages activity by the 
reporring unit from which revenues had been derived for the financial year in respect of 
such acrivity; and 

(ill) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in rdation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers 
on bt:half of workers other than reported in the financial report on rc:covexy of wages 
activity and the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iv) that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has disclosed to 
mem bers by way o f a written policy aU fees to be charged or reimbursement of expenses 
required for recovery of wages activity, and any likely request for donations or other 
contributions in acting for a worker. in recovery of wages activity; and 

(v) no fees or reimbursements o f expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers 
on behalf of workc::.rs until distributions of recovered money were made to the workers. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of officer: John Dixon 
Title of Office held: Branch Secretary 

Signnturc: 
Dated: 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FORTHEYEARENDEDl1DECEMBER2M4 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

Revenues 
Other income 5 29,416 42,423 
Intecest received 791 l,930 
Gcants income 6 5,000 4,000 
Membership fee income 7 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total revenues 2,755,627 3,576,747 

Expenses 

Audit of financial reporc 8 3,600 3,600 
Capitation fees and levies 9 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,724,020 3,531,994 

Travel costs 9,715 8,617 
Promotional costs 19,718 
Consulting costs 29,357 9,750 
Genetal costs 58 623 
Financial costs 70 

Total expenses 2,763,220 3,570,702 

(Loss) I Gain for the year (7,593) 6,045 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive (Loss) I Income (7,593l 6,045 

The Ftnancial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,856 19,421 
Trade and other receivables 5,065 
Other current assets 10 9,715 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,921 29,136 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,921 29,136 

CURRENT UABILITIES 
Trade and other payablc:s 11 3,665 14,287 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,665 14,287 

TOTAL LIABIUTIES 3 665 14,287 

NET ASSETS 7,256 14,849 

EQUITY 
Retained earnings 7,256 14,849 

TOTAL EQUITY 7,256 14.849 

The financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2014 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 31 December 2012 8,B04 

Total comprehensive gain for 2013 6,045 

Balance at 31 December 2013 14,849 

Totat comprehensive loss for 2014 (7,593) 

Balance at 31 December 2014 7,256 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

TOTAL 

$ 

8,804 

6,045 

14,849 

(7,593) 

7,256 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 
$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Other receipts 34,416 
Membership fees of the AEU 2,720,420 
Interest r.eceived 791 
Payments in the course of operations (2,769,192) 

N et cash provided by operating activities 12 (a) (13,565) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net decrease in cash held (13,565) 

Cash at beginning of year 19,421 

Cash at end of the year 12 (b) 5,856 

2013 
$ 

698,757 
3,528,394 

1,930 
(4,282,703) 

(53,622) 

(5],622) 

73,043 

19,421 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
aurhorative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as well as the requirt:.ments 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. A statement of compliance with International 
Pinancial Reporting Standards cannot be made due to the entity applying the not-fo r profit section 
specific requiremmts contained in AIFRS. 

The fin:tncial report is prepared on an accrual basis and is based on histo.tical costs and dues not take 
into account changing money values, o r except where stated, the current value of non-monetary assets. 

The accounting policies aJopted have been consistcndy applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Income Tax 

No provision for income tall: is necessary as the Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) is exempt from tax; under Sec 23(£) for the [ncomc Tax Assessment Act. 

(b) Revenue 

Grant revenue is recognised in the period in which it is received. Grant revenue is received from the 
New South Wales Teachers Federation (the associated body) and appears in that associated bodies 
audited ti.nancial statements. 

Membership fees of the Australian Education Union (AEU) are recognised for the financial year to 
which they relate. Membership fees of the:: AEU received in advance are recognised as a liability at 
balance dare. 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable 
to those. assets. 

(c) Financial Risk management objectives and policies 

The entity's principal financial instrument comprises receivable:;, payablcs and bank loans, cash and 
short term deposits. The entity manages credit risk in relation co trade receivables by undertaking 
transactions with organisations with good credit ratings. 

The en city does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor o r group of debtots 
under financial instruments entered into by it. 

The: consolidated entity manages its exposure to key financial risks including interest rate risk, credit 
risk and liyuidity risk. The consolidated entity uses different methods of measure and manages different 
types of risk. to which it is exposed. These include: monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate and 
assessments of market forecasts for interest tate prices. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(d) Risk Exposure and Responses 

l11ten:.rt rate risk 
The entity's exposure to market interest rates is minimal. The level u[ debt is cliscluscd in Note 13. 

(e) N ew accounting standards and interpretations 

The.t:e have been new Australian Accouocing Standards and Interpretations issued/ or amended that are 
applicable to the Ausr.ralian Education Un.iun (New South Wales Branch) but not yet e ffective. They 
have been considered and it is believed that they have no material impact on the presentation on rhe 
fit1ancial report. 

(t) Relationship between Australian Education Union and New South Wales Teachers 
Federation 

In 2014 the New South Wales Teachers federation was an associated body of the Australian Education 
Union specified in the Australian Education Union rules. The New South Wales Teachers Federation 
membership fee included membership of the Australian Education Un.iun (Nc:w South Wales Branch). 

Membership fees [or members of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) were: 
received &om the N ew South Wales Teachers Federation as per the obligation of the New South Wales 
Teachers Federation as an associated body of the Australian Education Union and enabled by Rult: 11 
(7) of the Australian Educarion Union rules. 

The Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) notes that Nc:w Sourh Wales Teachers 
Federation made provision for those costs in its annual budget incurred b}' the Australian Education 
Union (New South \Vales Branch) in respect of ,-\ uditors' fees and bank fec:s ineutt:ed fur management 
of membership fees and audited accounts and did this as part of its obligation to collect and process 
membership fees for the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

(g) Going concern basis of accounting 

The: financial report has been prepared on the basis of a going concern as NSW Teachers Federation 
has agreed to provide financial support a!; and whc:n required in respect of Audi tor's fc:c:s and bank fees 
incurred fur management uf membership fees and audltcd accounts. 

(h) Critical Accounting estimates and judgments 

The coLrunittee of management evaluates estimates and judgmt:nts incorporatt:d into the financial 
statements based on historical knowledge ami best available current informacion. Estimates assume a 
reasonable: cxpc:ctation of futurt: t:ven ts and are based on cucrenc trends and economic data, obtained 
both externally and within the consolidated entity. The committee has not m ade any provision for any 
critical accounting estimates and judgments. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 2: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 

No Capital Expenditure contracted for. 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

(a) Executive Officer 

The Chief Execurive Officer (Branch Secretary) during the year was John Dixon. 
No remuneration was received by Offlcers ot Executive members during the year. 
Persons holding positions as Executive (committee of management) members 
during the year were: 

Maurie Mulheron 
Gary Zadkovich 
Joan Lema.i.re 
Jenny Diamond 
John Dixon 
Wendy Currie 
John Dixon 
Maxine Sharkey 
Rod Brown 
Wayne Webber 
Gemma Ackroyd 
Kathryn Rellach 
Dianne Byers 
Philip Cooke 
Kylie Dawson 
Kathy Deacon 
Sally Edsall 
Denis Fitzgerald 
John Gauci 
Jennifer Mace 
Tim Mulroy 
Kathy Nicholson 
Lindy Nolan 
1-lichad Sciffcr 
Sue Simpson 
Geoff Turnbull 
Phil von Schoenberg 
Margaret V os 
Natasha Watt 
David Wynne 

President 
Deputy President 
Senior Vice-President 
Branch Secretary 
Branch Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Deputy Secretary 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Execntive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 

(b) Related party transactions 

Resigned position 24-July 2014 
ELected 12 September 2014 
Resigned position 3 August 2014 
Resigned 12 September 2014 

Elected 6 May 2014 
Resigned position 15 September 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Resigned position 16 March 2014 

Resigned position 24 July 2014 

Resigned position 31 March 2014 

Elected on 6 May 2014 

Elected 12 September 2014 

Membership fees of the AEU, paiJ to the Australian Education Union during 2014 was $2,720,420 
(2013: $3,528,394). Membership fees of the AEU were received from the New South Wales Teachers 
Fedc::rarion for the same amount. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Membership fees of the AEU are budgeted for and appear in the audited financial statc:;ments of the 
New Sou th Wales Teachers Federation (the associated body), for payment to the Australian Education 
Union (New South WaJes Branch) 

NOTE 4: Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Tn accordance with the requin:ments of the Fair Work (Rcgistet:ed Organisations) Act 2009, me 
atten tion of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as 
follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may appty to the reporting unit for 
specified prescribed information in relation to the reporcing unit to be made available to the 
person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
manner in whkh, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 
days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 

NOTE 5: OTHER INCOME 

Courlic/Tuition fees 
Gonsk.i Campaign Merchandising 
Consulting 
Funding- AEU ~\nnual Conference 

NOTE 6: GRANTS INCOME 
NSW Teachers Federation 

NOTE 7: MEMBERSHIP FEE INCOME 

NSW Teachct·s Federation 

NOTE 8: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

Grant Thornton, Audit of financial report 

2014 
$ 

59 

29,357 

29,416 

5,000 

2,720,420 

3,600 

2013 
$ 

19.718 
10,372 
12,333 
42 423 

4,000 

3,528,394 

3,600 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 9: CAPITATION FEES AND LEVIES 

All paid to AEU Federal Office 
ACTU Campaign fees 
ACTU Subscription fees 
Capitation fees 
F.ducacion International fees 

Publicarlon Levy (A) -Australian Educator 
Publication Levy (B) -Ti\FE Teacher 
Public Education Campaign fees 
Public Education Campaign Advertising 
Fed~ral Election Campaign Advertising 

NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Travd cosl:l:>-2014 AEU Annual Conference 

Received from NSW Teachers Federation 

NOTE 11: TRADE AND OTHER PAY ABLES 

Audit Fees- Payable to Grnnr Thornton 
Travel costs- 2014 AEU Annual Conference, 
Payable to AEU- Federal Office 
Registration costs- Union Governance 

NOTE 12: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

(a) Reconciliation of net cash inflow from 
operating activities to opetating surplus: 
Operating (loss)/ surplus 
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial 
year: 

(Increase)/Decrease in debtots 
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets 

(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

(b) Cash at the ~nd of the tinancial year is reconciled 
to items in the statement of financial position as 
follows: 

Cash at bank 

2014 
$ 

120,046 
214,282 

1,668,639 
141,654 

188,398 
18,682 

180,069 

188,650 
2,720,420 

3,600 

65 
3,665 

(7,594) 

(65) 
4,716 

(10,622) 

(13,565) 

5,856 

2013 
$ 

124,476 
213,476 

1,679,804 
118,874 

189,087 
19,410 

186,714 
996,552 

3,528,394 

9,715 

3,600 

10,687 

14,287 

6,045 

652,334 
(9,715) 

(702,286) 

(53,622) 

19,421 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 13: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Branch docs not participate in the use of derivative financial instruments. 

(a) Credit Risk 

The maxlmurn cxrosure to credit risk, excluding the value uf any collateral or any other security, at 
bala nce date tu recognise financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful 
debts, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the fi nancial statements. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtor.s 
unJer financial instruments entered into by the Branch. 

(b) Net Fair Values 

The net fair values of debtors, loans and other. amounts are dete.nnined by discounting rhe cash flows, 
at the market interest rates of similar securities, to their present values. 

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities docs not exceed cbeir net fair value. 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

Tbe Branch exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a finandal jnstrument's value will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in t1latket interest tatcs is rrunimal as all financial assets and liabilities ate 
non-interest bearing. 

(d) Sensitivity Analysis 

The Branch has no exposure to inter.est rate cisk. 

NOTE 14: ADMINISTRATION OF THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE BRANCH 

New South Wales Teachers Federation is an associated body of the Aus tralian Education Union 
specified in the Australian Education Union cul.es. The New South Wales Teachers federation 
membership fee includes membership of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Membership fee~ for members of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) are 
received from the New South Wales Teachers Feder.arion a~ per the obligation of the New South Wales 
Teachers Pederation as an associated body of the Australian F.ducatiun Union and enabled by Rule 11 
(7) of the Australian Education Union rules. 

The 1\ ustralian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) notes that New South Wales Teachers 
Federation continues co make provision for those costs in its annual budget incurred by the Australian 
Education Union (New South Wales Branch) in respect of Auclitors' fees and bank fees incurred for 
management of mernbctship fees and audited a~counts and does this as part of its obligation to collect 
and process membership fees for the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

NOTE 14: ADMINISTRATION OF THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE BRANCH 
(CONTINUED) 

Any surplus is retained within the AEU (NSW Branch) and is not distributed until the entiry is wound 
up. 

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

From the 1" January 2015 the new rules of the New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of the 
Australian Education Union came into effect. The assets and liabilities of the Australian Education 
Union and NSW Teachers Federation will be transferred to the new entity. 

NOTE 16: ORGANISATION DETAILS 

The registered office and principal place of business of the Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) is 23-33 Mary Street Surry HiUs. 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Le~l17, 383 KenlStreel 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Com!spondence ttl: 
Locked Sag 0800 
Q\IB Post Oft!ce 
Sydney NSW 1230 

T +61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E inlo.nsw@au.gt.com 
W -.grantthomlon.com.au 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying ftnancia( report of Australian Education Union (NSW 
'Branch) (the "Branch"), which comprise$ the statement of fmancial position as at 31 
December 2014, and the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising 
a summacy of significant accouming policies and other explanatory information to the 
financial report and Committee Management resolution of the entity. 

Respoftsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report 
The Committee of Management of the Branch are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the fmancial report in accord?.nce with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. This responsibility includes establishing 
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financiai report that are free from mareriaJ mi'istatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting esrimatcs 
that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an ()pinion on the financial rcpott based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards which requite us to 
comply with relev?.nt ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fmandal report 1s free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involvt:s performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amoWlts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal concroltdevant to the 
Branch's preparation and fair presentation of the fin:tncial report in otder to design audit 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389 

'Gftn' ftlo-l'ltwn'ttfcn'ulllduMUftdet'~ft&<it~t fhctRD2t~llrMettw'.it<ti.M.)tiC4,1.AllMidYm~ry ~C't:,t(tfltifd~en:u;nJI:.trtf«stoonbtX II'Ue~~. J&~ 
(l<)ft!••""'1'"'"" G' ... lllom""Aitl~.t• Ll4" .,.. • ..,..r.moiCtWII l-lonlllll>!ll~.,.otl14(Gfll.) Clll. .,dll>otmomborl!mo otorwl4•-d•.,...,..,..hp OIU.IIN•od>._bwrlrm 
cso""'M""h>l&<flbly -tllodOv-llylllo-OII<ftll GULd.,..nOijl....,,........., .. d.orl~ CIIL"""''"'""""'-'',..,,.,.rw>t...,... o(,..-.i<foool~one.....OO.•.or.d 
.,d'!Ciliobkt lol ....... .,,. •• ,.,.,., ""'"""" ll>ll>oA.i<~allonc.coo!c<lorfr.l'lou>tolllloiMII 'OrMilhDtllloft'mlll'rol•rll>Gw>lll""fiiMAU"'.etoli- oJ1H 41 m~~ JeS"'~it. 
AlliiT,..., 6<.11~di$<i-., on~ rdalel! ffiijUe~~. Gill I• oo1., A~<tlll•nrol•lod onlily 1<1 Gr•nlllanl!lrl Au&~aliolilllilad. 

Liability limiteo by a scheme appof)veu under Proressional Stano'atds Legislation Liability is limited in tho~e Stat~:s wbere a cunent 
smeme applies 
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0 Grant Thornton 

procedures that ate approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of cxptessing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An audit ilsu includes 
evaluating tht appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the fmancial report. 

We bc:lieVt: that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufftcient and appropriate to provide 
a basis fo-r our audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

AudltorJs Opinion 
In our opinion, 

a Satisfacto.;y accounting records were kept by the Branch in respect of the year ended 31 
December 2014, including: 

Records of the sources and nature of the income of the Branch (including income: 
from mernbc.rs); and 

n Records of the nature and purposes of expenditure of the Branch. 

b The fmancial repott of the Branch is in accordance with the requirements imposed by 
Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act and aJ>plicable Auscral.ia Accounting Standards 
including the Australian Account Interpretations. 

c The financial report of the Branch: 

Ptesents fairly, in all material respects, the Branch's fmancial position as at 31 
December 2014 and its performance and cash flow:; for the year then ended; and 

11 Complies with Australia Accounting Standards and the relevant legislation. 

d Grant Thornton Audit Pty I,td are registered auditors, members of Chartered 
.Accountants Australia and New Zealand and hold a current Public Practice Certificate. 

e We have concluded that management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the Branch's fmancial statement-. 1s appropriate. 

We haVt: obtained all the informacion and explanations we required from the officers and 

employees of the Branch, which were necessary for the purposes of our audit, and there 

were no deficiencies, failures or shortcomings in relation to the matters refcrred to above. 

~ r~t -rho.-.-. fo.,., 
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

.A G Rigele 

Partner- Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

These accounts ate a concise report of the activities of the New South Wales Branch of the federal 
union, rhe Australian Education Union. 

The principal activity of the Branch during the year was the pro tection and improvement of 
employment conditions for its members and the financial activity was mos tly limited to the receipt of 
funds collected on behalf of the Federal branch of the union by the New South Wales Teachers 
F~eta~fund, we'< roceived and then tramfetred to rhe federal unioo 

/~on 
~~~H SECRETARY 

SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

The financial statements of the Union have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the following summary is provided for members 
in accordance with Section 279(2) of the .Act. 

A copy of the Auditors' Report, Accoun ts and Statements will be supplied free of ch:uge to members 
who request same, 

Certificates required to be given under the Act by the Accounting Officer and the Committee of 
Management have been completed in accordance with the provisions of the Act and contain no 
qualifications. The financial statements, specific disclosures and other information included in the 
concise financial report are derived from, and are consistent with, the full financial report of 
Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

In accordance with the requirements of the Pair Work (Regjsteced Orgwisacions) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads 
as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manage.r: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit 
for specified prescribed information io relation to the reporting unir to be made available 
to the person makin~ the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period with.in. which, and the 
manner io which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Your committee presents the concise report on the union for the financial yeac ended 31 December 2014. 

Members of Committee 

The name uf the members of committee of management in office at any time during the financial year was: 

Maurie Mulheron Presiden t 
Gary Zadkovich Deputy President 
Joan Lemair.e Senior Vice-President 
Jenny Diamond Branch Secretary Resigned position 24 July 2014 
John Dixon Branch Secretary Elected 12 September 2014 
Wendy Currie Deputy Secretary Resigned position 3 August 2014 
John Dixon Deputy Secretary Resigned position 12 September 2014 
Maxine Sharkey Deputy Secretary 
Rod Brown Deputy Secretary Elected 6 May 2014 
Wayne Webber Deputy Secretary Resigned position 15 September 2014 
Gemma Ackroyd Executive Member 
Karhryn Bellach Executive Member 
Dianne Byers Executive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
Philip Cooke Executive Member 
[<:ylie Dawson Executive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
Kathy Deacon Executive Mernbc:r 
Sally E dsall E xecutive Member Resigned position 31 March 2014 
Denis Fitzgerald Executive Member 
John Gauci Executive Member Resigned position 16 March 2014 
Jennifer Mace Executive Member 
Tim Mulroy Executive Member 
K athy Nicholson Executive Member Resigned position 24 July 2014 
Lindy Nolan Executive Member 
Michael Sciffer Executive Member 
Sue Simpson Execucive Member Resigned position 31 March 2014 
Geoff Turnbull Executive Member 
Phil von Schoenberg Executive Member Elected on 6 May 2014 
Margaret Vos Executive Member 
Natasha Watt E xecutive Member Elected 12 September 2014 
David Wynne Executive Member 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Review of Operations 
A rc:view of the: operatiom of the union during the: financial year and the results of those operations found that 
dudng the year, the entity continued to engage in its principal activity, the: results of which are d.isclosc:d in rhc: 
attached financial statements. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
The: AEU NSW btanch undertook significant work in amending its rules and structures to harmonise with 
the: NSW Teachers ftc:deration tu achieve: a single entity. O n the 24 December 2014 the Fair Work 
Commission certified a new set of rules which created the Nc:w South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
of the Australian Education Union. 

Ptincipal Activity 
The principal activity of the c:ntity· dut:ing dte financial year was promotion of union activities within che 
education sector. No significant change in the: nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 
On the: 24 December 2014 the New South Wales Branch of the: Australian Education Union lodged with 
the: ftair Work Commission a notice and declaration setting out particulars of alteration to the New South 
Wales Branch rules. Effective from 1 January 2015, the reporting entity will acquire all assets and liabilities 
of the: New South \Vales Teachers Federation Union and operate as the provider of services for members 
of the New South Wales Teachets Federation Union. The revised reporting c:ntity will operate undc:r the 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch of the Australian Education Union. 

Employees/Members 
The reporting unit did not have any c:mployees during the yc:ar. The number of financial members at 31 
December 20"14 was 59,457 (2013: 60,225) 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer. or member of the organisation holds a position ali a trustee or 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where 
for holding such position is that they arc: an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resign from the reporting unk in accordance with nJe 17, which reads as folluws: 
"17 - Resignation from membership and termination of eligibility 

director of a 
the criterion 

(1) Subject to sub-rule: 17(1A) a member becomes ineligible foe membership of the reporting unit when 
he/she no lonhrer meets the: conditions of eligibility for membership of rhc reporring unit. 

(L-\) The: following persons shall after the date referred to in sub--rule 5(12) be eligible to retain membership 
of the reporting unit notwithstanding the fact that they are no longer eligible: for membership within che 
conditions of eligibility for membership set out in rule 5: 

(a) members who are eligible foe membership pursuant to paragraphs 5(3)(a), (b) or (c) and are: 

(i) seconuc:J by their employer to non-teaching duties, or 

(ii) appointed by the Minister for Education to any Board, Committee or statutory authority 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights o(membets to resign (continued) 

(b) members who were fonnerly eligible for membership pursuant to paragraph 5(4)(a), (b) or 

(c) and have commenced tu be employed elsewhere in the Victorian Education Department or in a 
technical and further education institution or by the Technical and Further Education Board or 
are seconded by their employer to perform professional duties requiring reacher qualifications; 

(d) persons who become members of the prior to the date rc:.fet.red to in sub-rule 5(12) pursuant to 

paragraphs 5(3)(d)or5(4)(d); 

provided that persons who arc entitled to retain membership pursuant to this sub-rule should not 
be entitled to reta.in membership after the expiration of the secondrncnt or appointment. 

(2) A member who becomes ineligible for membership of the reporting unit shall within seven days 
thereof give written notice of the fact and the reason thecefore to the Secretary of the Branch to 
which he/she is attached. 

(3) A member may resibrn from the reporting unit by written notice addressed to and delivered to tbe 
Secretary of the Branch to which the member is attached. 

(4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member. of the reporting unit-

(0 on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the rdevant Brauch Secreta.ry; 
or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the 
member ceases to be di~blc to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other ca~e-

(i) at tl1e end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 
Secretary; or 

[ti) oo the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which are due a.nd payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relari.on to a period before the mcmbe.c's resignation took effect, may be sued for and 
recovered in the name of the, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as ~debt due to the reporting unit. 

(6) A notice delivered to the rdevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received by the reporting 
unit when it was delivered. 

(J) A notice of resignation chat has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is not invalid 
becau.:;e it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Rights of members to resign (continued) 

(8) A resignation from membaship is valid even if it is not affected in accordance with this section if the 
member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the reporting unit that the resignation has been 
accepted. 

(!>) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected in 
accordance with this Rule. 

(1 0) ~'here the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous Where the 
relevanr Branch Secrela.cy accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous sub-rule the relevant 
Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her resignation has been accepted. 

(11) On receipt of a written notice from a membet: that he/ she has become ineligible for membership of the 
reporting unit or a notice of .resignation or on acceptance of a. resignation which is not effected .in 
acco.rdan.ce with this Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon ~~~ possible notify the Federal Secretary 
that the member has become ineligible for membership o.r that the member has rc:si.gned." 

Commjttee of Management Resolution 
On 31 March 2015 the Committee of Management of Australian F.ducation Union (New Suuth Wales Branch) 
passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose fznancial report (GPFR) of rhe Aus tralian 
Education Union (New South Wales R.ranch) for the financial year ended 31 December 2014: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its op.inion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian i'\ccounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statementS and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Man-ager; 

(c) the: financial statements and notes give a crue and fai.r view o f the financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit fur the financial year to which they relate; 

(c..l) there :ue reawnahlc grounds ro believe that the reporting entity will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payabl.e; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were hdd .in accordance with t.lte rules of the 
organiRation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affair:; of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance wirh the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ili) the financial records of the reponing unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the 
RO Act; and 

(iv) where the organil>ation coosisr:; of two or more reporting uoits, the financial records of the 
reporting unit have been kept, as fa.r as practicable, in a manner comistent '\vith each of the other 
reporting units of the organisation; and 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERAT ING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Committee ofMana.gement Resolution (continued) 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or Genc::.ral 
Manager or a Registrar duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information has been 
provided to the member or General ~oager; and 

(vi) whc::.re any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission 
under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.. 

(~ \Vhere the reporting unit has not de.r.ived revenue from wtdertak.ing recovery of wages activity, include 
the statement 'no revenue has been derived from umlertalcing recovery of wages act.ivicy during the 
reporting period' or 

(g) where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity: 

(i) the financiaL report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and acL-uratc:ly prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the: reporting guidelines of the General Manager; and 

(ii) the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope of the audh required 
under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activicy by the reporting unic from 
which revenues had been derived for the financial year in respect of such activicy; and 

(iii) no fees or reimbucscmcnts of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or donations or 
other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers on behalf of workers 
other than reported i.n the financial tt:port on recovery of wages activity and the notes co the 
financial statements; and 

(iv) that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the org;.tnisarion has disclosed to members 
by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or reimbursement of expenses required for 
recovery of wages activity, and any likely request for donations or other contributions in acting for 
a worker in recovery of wages activity; and 

(v) no fees oc reimbucsements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or donations or 
other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from employers on behalf of workers 
until distributions of recovered money wc::.re made to the workers. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of officc::.r: John Dixon 
Title of Office held: Branch Secretary 

Dated: 31 March 2015 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Infonnation on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) Financial Report 

The financial statements and disclosures in the condse financial report have been derived &om the 31 
December 2014 financial report of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) and cannot be 
expected to provide as full understanding of the fmancial performance, financial position and finandal and 
investing activitte~> of the reporting unit as the full report. 

The discu:;sion and analysis is provided to assist members in understanding the concise financial report. The 
discussion and analysis is based on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) financial 
statements and the information contained in the concise flnancial report has been derived from the full 
2014 Financial Report of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

Loss for the year was $7,593, this compared to a gain i:n 2013 year of $6,045. The loss for the year is due 
primarily to the Rcanch receiving a grant from NSW Teachers Federation in advance (2013) for travel costs 
associated with the 2014 AEU Annual Conference. Membership fee income of the Branch was $2,720,020 
representing a decrease of22.9% from the prior year (2013: $3,528,394). The decrease is primarily clue to nil 
collection of fees foe the national public education campaign compared to (2013: $996,552). 

Statement of Financial Position 

Cash and casb equivalents has decreased by $13,565 for the year due to timing differences in payments in 
the course of operations. 
Trade and other receivables balance is $5,0GS compared to (2013: $NIL), represents timing differences for 
payments tcceived &om NS~-TF. 
Trade and other payables balance is $3,665 (2013:$14,287) representing a movement of $10,622, the 
movement is attributable to payment of 2014 AEU Annual Conference travel invoice to AEU federal 
office. 

Equity has decreased to $7,256 (2013: $14,849) the decrease is attributable to the operating deficit fur the 
period of $7,593. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash at bank balance of $5,856 (2013:$1 9,421), the movement of $13 ,565 is represented by additional 
payments in the course of operations during the year. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 

2014 
$ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,856 
Trade and other receivables S,O<lS 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,921 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,921 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 3,665 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 665 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,665 

NET ASSETS 7,256 

EQUITY 
Retained earnings 7,256 

TOTAL EQUITY 7,256 

2013 
$ 

19,421 

9,715 

29,136 

29,136 

14,287 

14,287 

14287 

14,849 

14,849 

14,849 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

Revenues 

Other income 29,416 42,423 
Interest received 791 1,930 
Grants income 5,000 4,000 
Membership fet: income 2,720,420 3,528,394 

Total revenues 2,755,627 3,576,747 

Expenses 

Audit of financial report 3,600 3,600 
Capitation fees paid to Fedet:al Office 2.720,420 3,528,394 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,724,020 3,531,994 

Travel costs 9,715 8,617 
Promotion costs 19,718 
Consulting costs 29,357 9,750 
General costs 58 623 
Flnaocial costs 70 

2.763,220 3,570,702 
Total expenses 

(Loss)/Gain for the year (7,593) 6,045 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive (Loss)/Income (7,593) 6,045 
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AUSTRAliAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQillTY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2014 

Retained TOTAL 
Earnings 

$ $ 

Balance at 31 December 2012 8,804 8,804 

Total comprehensive gain for 2013 6,045 6,045 

Balance at 31 December 2013 14,849 14,849 

Total comprehensive loss fo.t 2014 (7,593) (7,593) 

Balance at 31 December 2014 7,256 7,256 

10 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

2014 
$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACfiVITIES 

Other receipts 34,41 6 
Membership fees of the AEU 2,720,420 
Interest .received 791 
Paymentli in the course of operarions (2,769, 192) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (13,565) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net decrease in cash held (13,565) 

Cash at bc:ginning of yc:ar 19,421 

Cash at end of the year 5,856 

2013 
$ 

698,757 
3,528,394 

1,930 
(4,282,703) 

(53,622) 

(53,622) 

73 043 

19,421 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Note 1: Basis of Preparation of the Concise Financial Report 

The concise financial report is an extract for the full financial report for the year ended 31 December 
2014. The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance: with Accounting Standard AASB 
1039: Concise financial Reports. 

The financial statemcnrs, specific disclosures and other information included in the concise financial 
report ace derived from, and are consistent wim, the full financial report of Australian Education Union 
(New South Wales Branch). The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as detailed an 
understanding uf the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of 
Australian .Education Union (New South Wales Branch) as the full financial report. A copy of me full 
financial report and autlitor's report '\\-'ill be sent to any member, free of charge, upon request. 

The financial report of Australian Education Union (New Sourh Wales Branch) complies with all 
Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian J\ccounting Standards Board as well as the requirements of me .fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. A statement of compliance with International Financial 
Reponing Standards cannot be made due to the entity applying me not-for profit section specific 
requirements contained in 1\[PRS. The presentation currency used in this concise financial report is 
Amtralian dollars. 

Note 2: Relationship between Australian Education Union and New South Wales Teachers 
Federation 

In 2014 the New South Wales Teachers Federation wa:; an associated body of the Austca..lian Education 
l.Jnion specified in the Australian Education Union rules. The New South Wales Teachers Federation 
membership fee included membership of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Membe.cship fees foe members of the Australian Education Union (New South \X/ ales Branch) were 
received from the N(!W South Wales Teachers Federation a~ per the obligation of the New South Wales 
·reachers Federation as an associated body of the Australian Education Union and enabled by Rule 11 (T) 
of the Australian Education Union rules. 

The Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) notes that New South Wales Teachers 
Federation made provision for those cosrs in ics annual budget incurred by the Au:;tralian Education 
union (New South Wales Branch) in respect of Auditors' fees and bank fees incurred fur management of 
membership fees and audited -accouot.c; and did this as part of its obligation to collecc and process 
mcmbet"Ship fees for the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

Level 17, 363 Kent Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Correspondence to: 
Locl<ed Sag 0800 
ava Post Olf~ee 

S)'Clney NSW 1230 

T ~1 2 8297 2400 
F ~~ 2 9299 4445 
E lnlo.ll8w@au.glcom 
W WMII.granllhomton.can.au 

We have audited the accompanying concise fmancial report of Australian Education Union 

(NSW Branch) {the ''Branch''), comprising the s tlltW1c:nt of financial posicion as at 3 1 

December 2014, the statement of profit or loss and o thct comprehensive income, statement 

of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for, and rdated notes, which was derived 

from the fmaocial report of .Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) for the year ended 

31 December 2014 . We expressed an unmodified auditor's opinion on that ftnancial report 

on our :mdito('s report dated 31 March 2015. 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report 
The Committee of Management of the Branch are responsible for the preparation and fair 

prcsentacion of the concise financial report in accordance with Accounting Standud AASR 

1039 Concise Financial Reports. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining in 

internal control relevant to the prepar~tion of the concise fmancial rcport; selecting and 

applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the citcumstanccs. 

Auditor'& responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an op.inion on the concise [mancial report based on our 

pcocedures which were conducted tn accordance with Austtalian Auditing Staodard s of rhc 
fmancial report of the Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) for the year ended 3 1 

December 2014. Our audit report on the fmancial report for the year was signed on 31 
March 2015 and was not subject to any modification. The Australian Auditing Standards 

require that Wt: comply with relevant ethical requirement!\ relating to audit engagements anu 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ftnancial report for 

the year is free from material misstatement 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 
a subsidiary or related enttty of Granl Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389 

'(Inn( Tkrnlai' •"""' ..... ~lhda ol!4c!l ~\o (!11111 u., ... rt _ ....... provil • ...., ........... -.~.101'1 ..-..... d .... ~ ............. IIOJOIIC.- .......... ,.. 

IXIIIe>l,..esGI ... llwlJftlm-•Udioan"'"""•"'dGr.onllban!m~Uoi(GIJli, Gfl.ndlho_f __ ooto--.;oatt>or""'Ull ... -~bn 
Is Utjllftlelegil""" S..W:..; lAd-..r loy L'l•~klU Gfll doesnec.,- • .,._lodirii,Gil .... .. .,...., ktna O<t td -k~. 0<111 donot¢11)61o--M>l 
111 rdhblebone -..· • ...,.~......,.,.., to e.oA."'""'"""le>:lmly,lheusoolli".el<m GtiJ!I-' '"~~''<!!; loQ<Ml ll!Q<nJeo!\llshbllJ:<iod A9N '11:17 SSG 3M Mills 
.Aultaiilll-ao•lie• ami rdllod on~i ... G'IIL ;, ,.., •• Alo,.,.,.. rd.atM ·~ly 1o c~.., l Thornt<:l\ ~uclrlio Unlilod. 

liability limited i)y a scheme llPf:li'OVc(j vr.der Pruf~ssional Stand~rds LegislatiOt) Lti1btlity is fimiled ;n those Slates wnem" t:UII el'll 
schetllll apulies 

13 



0 GrantThornton 

Our procedures in respect of the concise ftnancial report included testing that the 

information in the concise fmancial report is derived from, and is consistent with, the 

financial report for the year, and examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the 

amounts and other di:sdosures which were not direcdy derived from the ftnancial report for 

the ye<tt. These procedures have been undertaken to fonn an opinion whether, in all 
material respeccs, the concise fmancial report complies with Accounting Standard AASB 
1039 Concise Financial Reports. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to f>eovide 

a basis for our audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the 

Accounting Professional and Erhical Standards Board. 

Auditor's opinion 
In our opinion, the information reported in the concise fmancial report is consistent, in all 

material respects, with the financial report from which it was derived and complies wich the 

Accounting Standard AASB 101; Presentation of Financial Statements and the requirements 

imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act. For a better understanding of the fmancial 

position of Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) as at 31 December 2014, its 

financial performance for the year ended and the scope of our audit, the concise financial 

report should be reau in conjunction with the unabridged ftnancial report and the auditor's 
report thereon. ·Management's usc of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the Branch's financial statements is appropriate. 

~ '""'t '(h.,.," +o"' 
GRANT THORNTON AUDITP1YLTD 
Chartered Accountants 

,\ G Rigde 

Partner - Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 31 March 2015 
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Attachment C 

BRANCH SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 

I, John Dixon, Branch Secretary, Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) do certify that: 

1. I am an Officer authorised by the Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) Rules to 
lodge these documents. 

2. The New South Wales Branch Executive of the Australian Education Union (NSWTF 
Branch) held a meeting in accordance with the rules on 31 March 2015 at which the 
Executive passed a resolution concerning the accounts as presented. 

3. The Branch Executive at the aforementioned meeting carried the fo!rowing resolution: 

That In acron;lance with the Fair Work (RO) Act 2009, the Branch Executive of the 
Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) /JC/Ing as the Committee of Management, 
resolves that memhers will he provided wfth a copy of the Concise Financial Report for the 
financial period ended 31 Decamher 2014 and that the memhers shall he provided free of 
charge with a copy of the full report where they make a request. 

4 The copies of both the concise report being lodged is the document provided to members 
of the Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) website: 
http://www.nswtf.org.aYipage!ilaeu-linoncial-report-2014.h!Oll on and from 2nd Apri12015. 

Notification of the report's availability on the website was printed in the April edition of the 
magazine of the union, Education. 

5 The copy of the full report being lodged is the document presented to the meeting of the 
State Executive of the Australian Education Union (NSWTF Branch) on 31 March 2015. 

John Dixon 
6 May20 
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